
 

 
 

 

 
 

Audit and Standards Committee 
 

Tuesday 26 September 2023 on the rising of the 
Audit & Standards Advisory Committee. 
 
Conference Hall – Brent Civic Centre, Engineers 
Way, Wembley, HA9 0FJ 
 
Please note that this meeting will be held as an in person physical meeting with all 
Committee members required to attend in person.  
 
The meeting will be open for the press and public to attend or alternatively can be 
followed via the live webcast. The link to follow proceedings via the live webcast is 
available HERE 
 

Membership: 
 
Members Substitute Members 
Councillors: Councillors: 
 

Chan (Chair) 
S Butt 
Choudry 
Kabir 
Long 
J.Patel 
Smith 
 
 
 

Afzal, Agha, Begum, Gbajumo, Molloy and Shah 
 
Councillors: 
 

Kansagra and Mistry 

 

For further information contact: Natalie Connor, Governance Officer 
Tel: 020 8937 1506; Email: Natalie.Connor@brent.gov.uk 

 

For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: www.brent.gov.uk/democracy 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack

https://brent.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

2 
 

Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest: 
 

If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business, they 
must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent and 
must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item.  
 

If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must declare its 
existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent. 
 

If the Personal Interest is also significant enough to affect your judgement of a public interest and 
either it affects a financial position or relates to a regulatory matter then after disclosing the 
interest to the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating in discussion of the 
item, except that they may first make representations, answer questions or give evidence relating 
to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the meeting for those purposes. 
 
*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
(a)  Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit gain. 
(b)  Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of expenses in carrying 

out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union.  
(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the Councillors or 

their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the council. 
(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer. 
(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the 

Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest. 
(g)  Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of business or 

land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of any one class of its issued 
share capital. 

 

**Personal Interests: 
The business relates to or affects: 
(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management, and: 

 To which you are appointed by the council; 

 which exercises functions of a public nature; 

 which is directed is to charitable purposes; 

 whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a 
political party of trade union). 

(b) The interests a of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least £50 as 
a member in the municipal year;  

or 
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or 
financial position of: 

 You yourself; 

 a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close 
association or any person or body who is the subject of a registrable personal interest.  

 



 

3 
 

 
Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members  
 

 

2 Declarations of Interest  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, the nature 
and existence of any relevant disclosable pecuniary or personal interests 
in the items on this agenda and to specify the item(s) to which they relate. 
 

 

3 Deputations (if any)  
 

 

 To hear any deputations received from members of the public in 
accordance with Standing Order 67. 
 

 

4 Minutes of the previous meeting  
 

1 - 2 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on Tuesday 6 June 
2023 as a correct record. 
 

 

5 Brent Council Statement of Accounts 2022/23  
 

3 - 126 

 To note the final auditors’ findings and approve the Council’s final 
Statement of Accounts 2022/23. 
 

 

 
Date of the next meeting:  Thursday 12 October 2023. 
 

 Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 

 The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 
members of the public. Alternatively, it will be possible to follow 
proceedings via the live webcast HERE 
 

 

https://brent.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


This page is intentionally left blank



 
MINUTES OF THE AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Held in the Conference Hall, Brent Civic Centre on Tuesday 6 June 2023 on 
the rising of the Audit & Standards Advisory Committee 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Chan (Chair) and Councillors S.Butt, Choudry, Kabir, Long, J.Patel 
and Smith. 
 
Also Present: Councillor Mili Patel (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Resources and Reform), David Ewart (Independent Chair of the Audit & Standards 
Advisory Committee), Julie Byrom (Independent Person, Audit & Standards Advisory 
Committee – online) & Vineeta Manchanda (Independent Advisor Audit & Standards 
Advisory Committee). 

 
1. Apologies for Absence and clarification of alternate members  

 
None 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

3. Deputations (If any)  
 
None. 
 

4. Minutes of the previous meeting  
 
RESOLVED to approve the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 
Tuesday 21 March 2023. 
 

5. Annual Governance Statement 2022-23 
 
The Committee received the report from the Corporate Director of Governance that 
provided the draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2022/23 as required by 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  
 
Members noted that the AGS had been referred on to the Committee for formal 
approval following its detailed consideration at the preceding meeting of the Audit & 
Standards Advisory Committee. In considering the AGS the Audit & Standards 
Advisory Committee had identified the following amendments to be made –  
 
(1) Section 4.4.5 to be amended to reflect that the Audit & Standards Advisory 

Committee had met on 6 rather than 5 times during 2021/22. 
 
(2) Section 4.4.9 to be amended to reflect those strategic risks had been presented          

to the Audit & Standards Advisory Committee twice rather than quarterly during 
2021/22. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



2 
Audit and Standards Committee – 6 June 2023 

On the basis of the discussion and the acceptance of the comments made in 
relation to amending Section 4.4.5 and Section 4.4.9 at the preceding Audit & 
Standards Advisory Committee it was RESOLVED to approve the 2022/23 Annual 
Governance Statement for formal sign off.  
 

 
The meeting closed at 7.21pm 
 
COUNCILLOR JUMBO CHAN 
Chair 
 

Page 2



 

 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 

26 September 2023  

Report from the Corporate Director 
of Finance & Resources 

 

Lead Cabinet Member –  
Deputy Leader and Cabinet 

Member for Finance, Resources & 
Reform 

Statement of Accounts 2022/23  
 

 

Wards Affected:  All 

Key or Non-Key Decision:  Key 

Open or Part/Fully Exempt: 
(If exempt, please highlight relevant paragraph 
of Part 1, Schedule 12A of 1972 Local 
Government Act) 

Open 

No. of Appendices: 

Six: 
Appendix A - LB Brent Audit Findings Report 
Appendix B - LB Brent Draft Letter of 
Representation 
Appendix C - LB Brent Draft Audit Opinion 
Appendix D - LB Brent Pension Fund Audit 
Findings Report 
Appendix E - LB Brent Pension Fund Draft Letter 
of Representation 
Appendix F - LB Brent Pension Fund Draft Audit 
Opinion 

Background Papers:  None 

Contact Officer(s): 
(Name, Title, Contact Details) 

Minesh Patel, Corporate Director of Finance & 
Resources 
Minesh.Patel@Brent.gov.uk 
020 8937 4043 
 
Ben Ainsworth, Head of Finance 
Ben/Ainsworth@Brent.gov.uk 
020 8937 1731 

 
 
1.0 Executive Summary 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Minesh.Patel@Brent.gov.uk
mailto:Ben/Ainsworth@Brent.gov.uk


 
1.1 The Audit Committee has responsibility for considering issues raised by the 

external auditors as part of the process of approving the annual statement of 
accounts. The basis for this consideration is the “report to those charged with 
governance” also referred to as the ISA260 (Audit Findings Report). The 
Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton, produce the report following 
completion of the audit of accounts. The report is intended to identify any 
changes to the accounts, unadjusted mis-statements or material weaknesses 
in controls identified during the audit work. It also provides the findings from the 
value for money conclusion for the year. 
 

1.2 At the time of writing this report Grant Thornton are in the process of completing 
the audit of the 2022/23 accounts and their ISA260 (Audit Findings Report), 
reflecting the current position is attached in the appendices. Based on the 
current position Grant Thornton intends to complete the audit of the Council 
and Pension Fund accounts shortly. 
 

1.3 The key outstanding issue is that three local electors have made an objection 
to the accounts, Grant Thornton are proposing to sign off the accounts, but 
delay certification until the objections have been addressed. 

 
1.4  Representatives from Grant Thornton will attend the meeting to provide an 

update on the audit and respond to any matters raised by the Committee. 
 
2.0  Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to review the report to those charged with Governance 

from Grant Thornton and: 
 

 consider the key issues and recommendations 

 consider the corrected audit differences 

 delegate approval of the draft letter of representation to Grant Thornton to 
the Corporate Director of Finance & Resources  

 note the draft audit opinion 

 note the objections to the accounts 
 

3.0 Detail 
 
Contribution to Borough Plan Priorities and Strategic Context 
 
3.1 The statement of accounts is the formal audited accounts of the Council.  The
 purpose of the statement of accounts is to give clear information on the  
 Council’s overall finances and demonstrate stewardship of public money for 
 the year. Being able to independently demonstrate that the Council’s financial 
 affairs are sound, will ensure the Council can achieve its Borough Plan  
 priorities and objectives. 
 

Statement of Accounts 
 

Page 4



3.1 The audit of the accounts commenced in July, and under legislation should be 
completed by the 30th September. At the time of writing, audit fieldwork is 
substantially complete, and expected to be finalised in early October 2023, with 
the exception of the objections summarised below. To that end, an additional 
Audit and Standards meeting has been arranged on 12 October 2023 in order 
to for the committee to formally approve the accounts. 

 
3.2 The ISA260 report presented to the Audit and Standards Advisory Committee 

sets out the anticipated results of the audit with the following key points being 
an unqualified audit opinion, subject to further work on the objections. 

 
3.3 At the time of writing a number of adjustments to the accounts have been 

agreed by council officers and Grant Thornton and will be detailed by the 
combination of the auditor’s written and verbal reports to the Audit and 
Standards Advisory Committee.  

 
3.4 There are a number of recommendations from Grant Thornton for how the 

Council’s processes can be improved in future years. Officers will be putting 
these recommendations into effect with a revised plan for closing the 2023/24 
accounts. 

 
3.5  The Value for Money audit work is currently underway and is expected to be 

completed in time for the additional Audit and Standards Committee on 12 
October 2023. 

 
Objections 
 

3.6  Any local elector has the right to object to their Council’s accounts. They must 
do so in writing to the appointed auditor (Grant Thornton for Brent Council) and 
in order to “accept” the objection certain minimum tests must be met, for 
example that the objection is not in respect of a clearly trivial item. The 
significant majority of all objections made nationwide are “accepted”.  

 
3.7  Once an objection is “accepted” it must be “determined” by the auditor. The 

process for this is largely at the discretion of the auditor, who must be able to 
obtain information, interview relevant people and so on as they see fit in order 
to reach a decision. Once an objection is determined it is communicated to the 
Objector and to the Council, typically to the Chief Executive and s151 officer.  

 
3.8  There is a right of appeal to the High Court against an auditor’s decision not to 

apply for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law. Any such 
appeal must be initiated within 21 days of receipt of the determination. Although 
there is no right of appeal against an auditor’s decision not to issue a public 
interest report, it is amenable to judicial review. 

 
3.9 The three objections received all relate to bus lane enforcement, with a 

particular focus on a problem with invalid certifications issued by the Secretary 
of State to London boroughs. This problem was identified in 2022/23 and 
subsequently rectified. There is a further objection to the wording of the Penalty 
Charge Notice issued for bus lane enforcement.  

Page 5



 
3.10 The initial analysis of the financial position shows that the council does not 

receive an income which would make a material difference to the council for 
bus lane enforcement. The council is in the process of reviewing these 
objections. 

 
3.11 We are aware that similar objections have been received by several other 

London boroughs as the issue with invalid certifications is London wide. 
 
3.12 At the time of writing the auditors are not of the view that these objections will 

delay the sign off of the accounts, but they will not be fully certified until the 
objections have been addressed.  

 
4.0 Stakeholder and ward member consultation and engagement  
  
4.1 There are no direct considerations arising out of this report. 
  
5.0 Financial Considerations  
  
5.1 The hourly fees in dealing with objections are set by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments (PSAA, a subsidiary of the Local Government Association, which 
carries out the role of independently appointing auditors to local authorities) and 
are charged on to the council in question. In this case, the cost will depend on 
the number of hours spent on dealing with the objection, which can range from 
£59 per hour on a senior auditor to £165 per hour on a Partner/Director. As the 
review in ongoing the total cost of dealing with these objections is currently 
unknown. 

  
6.0 Legal Considerations  
  
6.1  There are no legal considerations arising out of this report. 
  
7.0 Equality, Diversity & Inclusion (EDI) Considerations 
  
7.1 There are no equality considerations arising out of this report. 
  
8.0 Climate Change and Environmental Considerations 
  
8.1 There are no climate change or environmental considerations arising out of 

this report. 
  
9.0 Human Resources/Property Considerations (if appropriate) 
  
9.1 There are no HR or property considerations arising out this report. 
  
10.0 Communication Considerations 
  
10.1 There are no communication considerations arising out of this report. 
 
  

Page 6



 
 
  
  

Report sign off:   
 
Minesh Patel 
Corporate Director of Finance and Resources 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 9



Commercial in confidence

P
age 10



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 11



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 12



Commercial in confidence

P
age 13

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2023/about-time-local-authority-reports.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

Audit findings

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

Net pension 

liability – £262m

•

•

•

 

 

 

Comparison 

cannot be made









P
age 28



Commercial in confidence









Net pension liability  
(continued)

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

 





P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

 





P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•









P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

  TBC TBC Management Override of 

Control

We have carried out 

targeted test as part of 

journal testing to address 

the risks identified.

Assessment

  






P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

P
age 34



Commercial in confidence

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Standards Committee 

P
age 35



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 36



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 37



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 38



Commercial in confidence

Specified 

procedures for 

Whole of 

Government 

Accounts 

P
age 39



Commercial in confidence

P
age 40



Commercial in confidence

P
age 41



Commercial in confidence

P
age 42

https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 43



Commercial in confidence

P
age 44



Commercial in confidence

P
age 45



Commercial in confidence

Appendices





 

 



















P
age 46



Commercial in confidence







P
age 47



Commercial in confidence







P
age 48



Commercial in confidence







P
age 49



Commercial in confidence







P
age 50



Commercial in confidence







P
age 51



Commercial in confidence







P
age 52



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

P
age 53



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 54



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 55



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

P
age 56



Commercial in confidence

P
age 57



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 58



Commercial in confidence

P
age 59



Commercial in confidence

P
age 60



Commercial in confidence

P
age 61



Commercial in confidence

P
age 62



Commercial in confidence

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

P
age 66



P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Commercial in confidence 

[LETTER TO BE WRITTEN ON CLIENT HEADED PAPER] 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

30 Finsbury Square 

London  

EC2A 1AG 

 

[Date] – {TO BE DATED SAME DATE AS DATE OF AUDIT OPINION] 

 

Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP 

London Borough of Brent 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of London 

Borough of Brent and its subsidiary undertakings, First Wave Housing Ltd, i4B Holdings Ltd, Barham 

Park Trust and LGA Digital Services for the year ended 31 March 2023 for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion as to whether the group and Council financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 and applicable law.  

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered 

necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Financial Statements 

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the group and Council’s financial 

statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2022/23 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance 

therewith. 

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the group and 

Council and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial 

statements. 

iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material 

effect on the group and Council financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has 

been no non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 

control to prevent and detect fraud. 

v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured 

at fair value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates include [XXX…]. We are satisfied that 

the material judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, 

in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. We 

understand our responsibilities includes identifying and considering alternative, methods, 

assumptions or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting framework, 

and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the estimate used. During the year we 

evaluated our estimation process for [add estimation] and the following change/s to estimation 

process was/were made[…] We are satisfied that the methods, the data and the significant 

assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates and their related disclosures are 

appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in 

accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. 

Page 69



 

Commercial in confidence 

 

vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of 

pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent 

with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and 

properly accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have 

been identified and properly accounted for.  

vii. Except as disclosed in the group and Council financial statements: 

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 

b. none of the assets of the [group and ]Council has been assigned, pledged or 

mortgaged 

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring 

items requiring separate disclosure. 

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 

disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards 

and the Code. 

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International 

Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been 

adjusted or disclosed. 

x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures 

changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The group and Council financial 

statements have been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure 

changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

xi. We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings 

Report and attached. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these misstatements 

brought to our attention as [they are immaterial to the results of the Council and its financial 

position at the year-end OR list reasons]. The financial statements are free of material 

misstatements, including omissions. 

xii. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance 

with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

xiii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of 

assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xiv. There are no other prior period errors to bring to your attention. 

xv. We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the group and 

Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not 

identified any material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds  that :  

a. the nature of the group and Council means that, notwithstanding any intention to 

cease the group and Council operations in their current form, it will continue to be 

appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting because, in such an event, 

services it performs can be expected to continue to be delivered by related public 

authorities and preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis will still 

provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial statements 

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its financial statements 

on the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and  

c. the group and Council’s system of internal control has not identified any events or 

conditions relevant to going concern. 

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the group and Council's ability to continue as 

a going concern need to be made in the financial statements  

 

Page 70



 

Commercial in confidence 

xvi. We have considered whether accounting transactions have complied with the requirements of 

the Local Government Housing Act 1989 in respect of the Housing Revenue Account ring-

fence. 

xvii. The group and Council has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could have a 

material effect on the group and Council’s financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

Information Provided 

xviii. We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of 

the group and Council’s financial statements such as records, documentation and 

other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; 

and 

c. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements, from whom you 

determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

xix. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is 

aware. 

xx. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 

statements. 

xxi. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 

may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

 

xxii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are 

aware of and that affects the group and Council, and involves: 

a. management; 

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

xxiii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 

affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, 

regulators or others. 

xxiv. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 

with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial 

statements. 

xxv. We have disclosed to you the identity of the group and Council's related parties and all the 

related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

xxvi. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 

should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

Annual Governance Statement 

xxvii. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk 

assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant 

risks that are not disclosed within the AGS. 

Narrative Report 

xxviii. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the group and 

Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the financial 

statements. 

Page 71



 

Commercial in confidence 

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit and Standards 

Committee at its meeting on [ENTER DATE]. 

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

Name…………………………… 

 

Position…………………………. 

 

Date……………………………. 

 

 

Name…………………………… 

 

Position…………………………. 

 

Date……………………………. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1 

 

Independent auditor's report to the members of the London Borough of 

Brent 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 

We have audited the financial statements of London Borough of Brent (the ‘Authority’) and its 

subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2023, which comprise Balance Sheet, the 

Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Cash Flow 

Statement, Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement,  Movement on the Housing 

Revenue Account Statement, Collection Fund Account, Group Balance Sheet, Group Consolidated 

Income and Expenditure Statement, Group Cash Flow Statement, Group Movement in Reserves and 

notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting and notes to the 

financial statements. The notes to the financial statements include a summary of significant accounting 

policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 

and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2022/23. 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Authority as at 31 March 

2023 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Authority’s expenditure and income for the 

year then ended;  

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23; and  

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 

applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the Code of Audit Practice”) approved 

by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. 

We are independent of the group and the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Corporate Director Finance and 

Resources’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 

whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the group and the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Authority or the group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

In our evaluation of the Corporate Director Finance and Resources’ conclusions, and in accordance with 

the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2022/23 that the Authority’s and group’s financial statements shall be prepared on a 

going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services 

provided by the group and the Authority. In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice 

Note 10 Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom 

(Revised 2022) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We 

Page 73



Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2 

assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the group and Authority and the group 

and Authority’s disclosures over the going concern period.  

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Corporate Director Finance and 

Resources’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 

appropriate.  

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to 

events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s and 

the group’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the 

financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Corporate Director Finance and Resources with 

respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. 

Other information 

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Governance Statement and the 

Statement of Accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon and our 

auditor's report on the pension fund financial statements. The Corporate Director Finance and 

Resources is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not 

cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 

apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 

misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 

fact.  

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice 

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on behalf of the 

Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the 

Annual Governance Statement does not comply with ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE, or is misleading or 

inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider 

whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are 

satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.  

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice  

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements, the 

other information published together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the 

financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if: 

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under 

Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the 

audit; or;  

Page 74



Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3 

 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the 

course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or  

 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters. 

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Corporate Director Finance and Resources  

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities [set out on page XXX], the Authority is 

required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 

one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that 

officer is the Corporate Director Finance and Resources. The Corporate Director Finance and 

Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial 

statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, for being satisfied that they give a true and 

fair view, and for such internal control as the Corporate Director Finance and Resources determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporate Director Finance and Resources is responsible for 

assessing the Authority’s and the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

they have been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Authority and the 

group without the transfer of its services to another public sector entity. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these financial statements. Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance 

with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 

including fraud, is detailed below. 

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the group 

and Authority and determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to specific assertions 

in the financial statements are those related to the reporting frameworks (the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local Government Act 

2003), the Local Government Act 1972, the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local 

Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government Finance Act 1992) and the Local 

Government Finance Act 2012. 

We enquired of management and the Audit and Standards Committee, concerning the group and 

Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:  

 the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations; 

 the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and 

 the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance 

with laws and regulations.  

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Audit and Standards Committee, whether they were 
aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any 
knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.  

We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority and group’s financial statements to material 

misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management’s incentives and 

opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of 

Page 75



Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4 

management override of controls and assessment of the risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure 

recognition. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to journals: 

 Using data analytics, we considered all journal entries for fraud and set specific criteria to 

identify the entries we considered to be high risk. Such criteria included journals with unusual 

values; journals posted after the year end; journals with a material impact on the surplus/deficit 

for the year; and journals created by senior managers. 

Our audit procedures involved: 

 evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that the Corporate Director Finance and 

Resources has in place to prevent and detect fraud. 

 analysis of the journals listing and determination of the criteria for selecting high risk unusual 

journals  

 identification and testing of unusual journals made during the year and the accounts production 

stage for appropriateness and corroboration. 

 reviewing and testing transfers between the General Fund and HRA and inter group journals. 

challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting 

estimates in respect of land and buildings valuations, council dwelling valuations, PFI 

valuations, the valuation of defined benefit net pension fund liabilities, grants and income 

recognition, PFI provisions and minimum revenue provision. 

 assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our 

procedures on the related financial statement item. 

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements 

were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher 

than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is 

inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-

compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial 

statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. 

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team 

members, including the potential for fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition, and the significant 

accounting estimates related to land and buildings valuations, council dwelling valuations, PFI 

valuations, depreciation, the valuation of defined benefit net pension fund liabilities, provisions, income 

and expenditure accruals, PFI liabilities, credit loss and impairment allowances, and fair value 

estimates. We remained alert to any indications of non-compliance with laws and regulations, including 

fraud, throughout the audit. 

Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the group and 

Authority’s engagement team included consideration of the engagement team's 

 understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and 

complexity through appropriate training and participation 

 knowledge of the local government sector in which the group and Authority operates 

 understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority and group 

including: 

o the provisions of the applicable legislation 

o guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE 

o the applicable statutory provisions. 

In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of: 

 the Authority and group’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and 

its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions, 

account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may 

result in risks of material misstatement. 

Page 76



Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5 

 the Authority and group's control environment, including the policies and procedures 

implemented by the Authority and group to ensure compliance with the requirements of the 

financial reporting framework. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 

Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms 

part of our auditor’s report. 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the Authority’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 

use of resources 

Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been 

able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2023.   

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter. 

Responsibilities of the Authority 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied 

that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of 

the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

are operating effectively. 

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance 

issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in January 2023. This guidance sets out the 

arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these 

arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on 

arrangements under three specified reporting criteria: 

 Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can 

continue to deliver its services;  

 Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly 

manages its risks; and  

 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about its 

costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services. 

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these three 

specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and 

commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there is 

evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in 
certification of completion of the audit 

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for the London Borough of Brent for 

the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed our consideration of 

Page 77

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6 

objections brought to our attention by local authority electors under section 27 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014. We are satisfied that this these matters do not have a material effect on the 

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 [and as set out in paragraph 44 of the Statement of 

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited]. 

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters 

we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the 

Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

Signature:          

Ciaran Mclaughlin, Key Audit Partner 

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor 

 

 

London 

Date:  

 

 

Page 78



P
age 79



Commercial in confidence

P
age 80



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 81



Commercial in confidence

P
age 82

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2023/about-time-local-authority-reports.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 83



Commercial in confidence

P
age 84



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 85



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 86



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 87



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 88



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 89



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 90



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 91



Commercial in confidence

Assessment

  






  TBC TBC Management Override of 

Control

We have carried out 

targeted test as part of 

journal testing to address 

the risks identified.

P
age 92



Commercial in confidence

Assessment

  






P
age 93



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 94



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 95



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 96



Commercial in confidence

P
age 97



Commercial in confidence

P
age 98

https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 99



Commercial in confidence

P
age 100



Commercial in confidence

Appendices





 

 



















P
age 101



Commercial in confidence







P
age 102



Commercial in confidence







P
age 103



Commercial in confidence







P
age 104



Commercial in confidence







P
age 105



Commercial in confidence







P
age 106



Commercial in confidence

✓

•

•

•

•

•

✓

P
age 107



Commercial in confidence

✓

•

•

•

•

✓

✓

P
age 108



Commercial in confidence

✓

•

•

•

✓

P
age 109



Commercial in confidence

✓

P
age 110



Commercial in confidence

P
age 111



Commercial in confidence

P
age 112



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 113



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

P
age 114



P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Commercial in confidence 

[LETTER TO BE WRITTEN ON CLIENT HEADED PAPER] 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

30 Finsbury Square,  

London, EC2A 1AG 

 

[Date] – {TO BE DATED SAME DATE AS DATE OF AUDIT OPINION] 

 

Dear Sirs 

Brent Pension Fund 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of Brent 

Pension Fund for the year ended 31 March 2023 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether 

the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom 2022/23 and applicable law.  

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered 

necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Financial Statements 

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Fund’s financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 ("the Code"); in 

particular the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Fund and these 

matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. 

iii. The Fund has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material 

effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-

compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 

control to prevent and detect fraud. 

v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured 

at fair value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates include accounting estimates include 

the valuation of Level 3 investments, Level 2 investments and the Actuarial Present Value of 

Promised Retired Benefits. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the 

preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and 

adequately disclosed in the financial statements. We understand our responsibilities includes 

identifying and considering alternative, methods, assumptions or source data that would be 

equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why these alternatives were rejected 

in favour of the estimate used. During the year we evaluated our estimation process for [add 

estimation] and the following change/s to estimation process was/were made[…] We are 

satisfied that the methods, the data and the significant assumptions used by us in making 

accounting estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, 

measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with the Code and adequately 

disclosed in the financial statements. 

vi. Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 

Page 117



 

Commercial in confidence 

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 

b. none of the assets of the Fund has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged 

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring 

items requiring separate disclosure. 

vii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 

disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards 

and the Code. 

viii. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International 

Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been 

adjusted or disclosed. 

ix. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures 

changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The financial statements have been 

amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of 

material misstatements, including omissions. 

x. We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings 

Report and attached. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these misstatements 

brought to our attention as [they are immaterial to the results of the Fund and its financial 

position at the year-end OR list reasons]. The financial statements are free of material 

misstatements, including omissions. 

xi. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance 

with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

xii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of 

assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xiii. There are no other prior period errors to bring to your attention. 

xiv. We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Fund’s 

financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not identified any 

material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that that :  

a. the nature of the Fund means that, notwithstanding any intention to liquidate the Fund 

or cease its operations in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to adopt 

the going concern basis of accounting because, in such an event, services it performs 

can be expected to continue to be delivered by related public authorities and preparing 

the financial statements on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful 

representation of the items in the financial statements 

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its financial statements 

on the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and  

c. the Fund’s system of internal control has not identified any events or conditions 

relevant to going concern. 

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Fund's ability to continue as a going 

concern need to be made in the financial statements. 

 

Information Provided 

xv. We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of 

the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; 

and 

Page 118



 

Commercial in confidence 

c. access to persons within the Fund via remote arrangements from whom you 

determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

xvi. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is 

aware. 

xvii. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 

statements. 

xviii. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 

may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

 

xix. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are 

aware of and that affects the Fund, and involves: 

a. management; 

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

xx. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 

affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, 

regulators or others. 

xxi. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 

with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial 

statements. 

xxii. There have been no communications with The Pensions Regulator or other regulatory bodies 

during the year or subsequently concerning matters of non-compliance with any legal duty.  

 

xxiii. We are not aware of any reports having been made to The Pensions Regulator by any of our 

advisors.   

xxiv. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Fund's related parties and all the related party 

relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

xxv. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 

should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Fund’s Audit and Standards Committee 

at its meeting on [ENTER DATE]. 

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

Name…………………………… 

 

Position…………………………. 

 

Date……………………………. 

 

 

Page 119



 

Commercial in confidence 

Name…………………………… 

 

Position…………………………. 

 

Date……………………………. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 120



Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1 

 

 

Independent auditor's report to the members of London Borough of 

Brent on the pension fund financial statements of Brent Pension Fund 

Opinion on financial statements 

We have audited the financial statements of Brent Pension Fund (the ‘Pension Fund’) administered by 

London Borough of Brent (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2023, which comprise the Fund 

Account, the Net Assets Statement and notes to the pension fund financial statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in 

their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23. 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Pension Fund during the year ended 31 

March 2023 and of the amount and disposition at that date of the fund’s assets and liabilities;  

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23; and  

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 

applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the Code of Audit Practice”) approved 

by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. 

We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the Pension Fund’s financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and 

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Corporate Director Finance and 

Resources’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 

whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Pension Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Pension Fund to cease to continue as a going concern. 

In our evaluation of the Corporate Director Finance and Resources’ conclusions, and in accordance with 

the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2022/23 that the Pension Fund’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going 

concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services provided by 

the Pension Fund. In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of 

financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2022) on the 

application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the reasonableness 

of the basis of preparation used by the Authority in the Pension Fund financial statements and the 

disclosures in the Pension Fund financial statements over the going concern period.  

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Corporate Director Finance and 

Resources’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the Pension Fund 

financial statements is appropriate.  

Page 121



Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to 

events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Pension Fund’s 

ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial 

statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Corporate Director Finance and Resources with 

respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. 

Other information 

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the 

Pension Fund’s financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, and our auditor’s report on the 

Authority’s financial statements. The Corporate Director Finance and Resources is responsible for the 

other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, 

except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon.  

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the Pension Fund financial statements, or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a 

material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, 

we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 

that fact.  

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) published by the National 

Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the Pension Fund’s financial 

statements, the other information published together with the Pension Fund’s financial statements in the 

Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is 

consistent with the Pension Fund financial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if: 

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under 

Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the 

audit; or;  

 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the 

course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or  

 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters in relation to the Pension Fund. 

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Corporate Director Finance and Resources  

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities [set out on page  XXX ], the Authority is 

required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 

one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that 

officer is the Corporate Director Finance and Resources. The Corporate Director Finance and 

Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the Pension 

Fund’s financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, for being satisfied that they 

Page 122



Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3 

give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Corporate Director Finance and Resources 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the Pension Fund’s financial statements, the Corporate Director Finance and Resources is 

responsible for assessing the Pension Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

they have been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Pension Fund 

without the transfer of its services to another public sector entity. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Pension Fund’s financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these financial statements. Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance 

with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 

including fraud, is detailed below. 

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Pension 

Fund and determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the 

financial statements are those related to the reporting frameworks (the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Local Government Act 2003, the 

Public Service Pensions Act 2013, The Local government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and the 

Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 ). 

We enquired of management and the Audit and Standards Committee, concerning the Authority’s 

policies and procedures relating to:  

 the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations; 

 the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and 

 the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance 

with laws and regulations.  

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Audit and Standards Committee, whether they were 
aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any 
knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.  

We assessed the susceptibility of the Pension Fund’s financial statements to material misstatement, 

including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management’s incentives and opportunities for 

manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of management override of 

controls. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to journals: 

 using data analytics, we considered all journal entries for fraud and set specific criteria to 

identify the entries we considered to be high risk. Such criteria included journals with unusual 

values; journals posted after the year end; journals with a material impact on the surplus/deficit 

for the year; and journals created by senior managers. 

 

 

Our audit procedures involved:  

 evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that the Corporate Director Finance and 

Resources has in place to prevent and detect fraud; 

 journal entry testing, with a focus on what we deem to be high risk journals;  

Page 123



Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4 

 challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting 

estimates in respect of Level 2 investments and Level 3 investments and IAS 26 pensions 

liability valuations;  

 assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our 

procedures on the related financial statement item. 

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements 

were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher 

than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is 

inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-

compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial 

statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. 

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team 

members, including the potential for fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition, and the significant 

accounting estimates related to Level 2 investments, Level 3 investments and IAS 26 pension liability 

valuations. 

Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the 

engagement team included consideration of the engagement team's. 

 understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and 

complexity through appropriate training and participation 

 knowledge of the local government pensions sector 

 understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Pension Fund 

including: 

o the provisions of the applicable legislation 

o guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE 

o the applicable statutory provisions. 

In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of: 

 the Pension Fund’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and its 

services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions, 

account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may 

result in risks of material misstatement. 

 the Authority's control environment, including the policies and procedures implemented by 

the Authority to ensure compliance with the requirements of the financial reporting 

framework. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 

Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms 

part of our auditor’s report. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 [and as set out in paragraph 44 of the Statement of 

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited]. 

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters 

we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the 

Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

Signature:          

Ciaran Mclaughlin, Key Audit Partner 

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor 

Page 124

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5 

 

London 

Date: 

 

 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Brent Council Statement of Accounts 2022/23
	Appendix A -LB Brent Audit Findings Report
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings for London Borough of Brent  
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: 1. Headlines
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 1. Headlines
	Slide 6: 1. Headlines
	Slide 7: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements: Other risks
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements - Observations in respect of other risks (continued)
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements: new issues and risks
	Slide 17: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 18: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 19: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 20: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 21: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 22: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 23: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 24: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 25: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 26: 2. Financial Statements: matters discussed with management
	Slide 27: 2. Financial Statements:  other communication requirements
	Slide 28: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 29: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 30: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 31: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 32: 3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM)  
	Slide 33: 3. VFM: our procedures and conclusions
	Slide 34: 4. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 35: 4. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 36: 4. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 37
	Slide 38: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 39: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 40: B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 41: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 42: B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 43: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 44: B. Action Plan - IT Audit Findings
	Slide 45: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 46: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 47: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 48: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 49: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 50: D. Audit Adjustments - continued
	Slide 51: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 52: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 53: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 54: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 55: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 56: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 57: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 58: F. Auditing developments
	Slide 59

	Appendix B - LB Brent Draft Letter of Representation
	Appendix C - LB Brent Draft Audit Opinion
	Appendix D - LB Brent Pension Fund Audit Findings Report
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings Report for Brent Pension Fund  
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: 1. Headlines
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 6: 2. Financial Statements
	Slide 7: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements: Other risks 
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements: new issues and risks
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements:  other communication requirements
	Slide 17: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 18: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 19: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 20: 3. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 21: 3. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 22
	Slide 23: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 24: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 25: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 26: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 27: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 28: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 29: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 30: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 31: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 32: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 33: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 34: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 35: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 36: F. Auditing developments
	Slide 37

	Appendix E - LB Brent Pension Fund Draft Letter of Representation
	Appendix F - LB Brent Pension Fund Draft Audit Opinion


